
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.ci.covington.wa.us 
Tuesday, January 25, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• National Mentoring Month Proclamation – January 2011 (Tom Wood) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Vouchers. (Hendrickson) 
C-2. Execute an Agreement with Reporter Newspapers for Monthly Update, City Report Card, 

and Annual Residents’ Guide (Slate) 
C-3. Blythe Schneider Request for Extension of Commercial Site Development Permit (Lyons) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  January 13 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Gregg Lobdell:  Oct. 14, Nov. 18, Dec. 9, and Jan. 13 Meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair David Aldous:  November 17 and January 19 Meetings. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  Nov. 4, Nov. 18, Jan. 6, and Jan. 20 Meetings. 

 
• Future Meetings:  Economic Development Council Next Meeting Scheduled for Jan. 27. 

     
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• Review the Performance of a Public Employee (RCW 42.30.1110(1)(g)) 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 25, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #24699-24803, in the Amount of $366,578.28, Dated January 
11, 2011; and Payroll Checks #8516-8524, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $123,914.89, Dated January 7, 2011. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #24699-24803, in the Amount 
of $366,578.28, Dated January 11, 2011; and Payroll Checks #8516-8524, 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $123,914.89, 
Dated January 7, 2011. 
 
 
 

1 of 24



2 of 24



3 of 24



4 of 24



5 of 24



6 of 24



7 of 24



8 of 24



9 of 24



10 of 24



11 of 24



12 of 24



13 of 24



14 of 24



15 of 24



Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 25, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH REPORTER NEWSPAPERS FOR MONTHLY 

UPDATE, CITY REPORT CARD AND ANNUAL RESIDENTS’ GUIDE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Covington Reporter Contract for Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In 2010, as in past years, the City contracted services for the Monthly Update, Annual Report 
Card and Annual Residents’ Guide with the Covington Reporter. The Reporter has provided 
excellent communication, design and content proofing, reasonable rates and flexibility in 
deadlines. 
 
The Covington Reporter has decided not to increase their fees in 2011 due to our relationship, 
even though the economy is tough. Their Proposed Contract is attached for review. It is nearly 
similar to the 2010 Contract for Services. 
 
Due to no rate increase, an excellent relationship with the Reporters’ staff and results of the City 
of Covington’s 2009 Citizen Survey, which report residents get the most news about the City 
from the Reporter, staff recommends contracting with the Reporter again in 2011. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Renegotiate fees with the Reporter or choose to create these publications in-house. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
We have budgeted $36,100 in the Executive Office Budget for 2011. Actual costs will likely be 
less than the budgeted amount.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with the 
Reporter for annual advertising services. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney 

16 of 24



 
 
 

16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 

253-638-1110 
 

The City of Covington agrees to authorize and use advertising in the Covington Reporter from February 
1, 2011 through January 31, 2012. The ad sizes and prices will be at the established nonprofit rates as 
detailed. Additional pages may be added at these same rates. Up to 50 copies of the newspaper will be 
provided to the City. 

Advertising Agreement 

 
• 6x13 Full page with Full Color to be used for the City of Covington Update  $1473 
• Double Truck with Full Color to be used for the City of Covington Update  $2800 
• 3 Full pages with Full Color to be used for the City of Covington Update  $4200 
• 2 Full pages with Full Color to be used for the Residents Guide $750 per page $1500 
• Discretionary advertising funds spent into the CMV Reporter    $1000 
• Discretionary fund match of $1000 value in ad space by CMV Reporter    
 
The Covington Reporter newspaper distributes their weekly print edition to the homes in Covington, 
Maple Valley, Black Diamond, Ravensdale and the surrounding King County area with readership 
exceeding 44,000. The online edition publishes new stories daily, and rapid breaking news updates 
distributed on the website with links on Facebook and twitter. Online display advertising at 
covingtonreporter.com with a link to the city website is available for $22 per week and is strongly 
recommended as a highly effective communication tool for the city. 
 
The annual Residents Guide will be produced in booklet form and distributed in the Covington Reporter, 
delivered to homes in zip code 98042, with an additional 1000 copies of the guide provided to the City. 
The City will serve as a significant source for news content and will be provided the equivalent of two 
pages of advertising with full color for $1500. The publication will be allowed to sell ads to local 
businesses for placement within the guide. 
 
Agreed to by: 
____________________________________                        ____________________________________
  
Date_____________           Date_____________ 
 
Rhonda L. Madison           Derek Matheson 
Manager             City Manager 
Covington Reporter           City of Covington 
 
 
Attest:             Approved as to form by: 
 
__________________________________        ______________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk           Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

17 of 24



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 25, 2011 

 
SUBJECT:  BLYTH SCHNEIDER REQUEST FOR EXTENION OF COMMERCIAL SITE 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: David Nemens, Community Development Director 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Blyth Schneider Site Plan 
2. Developer’s request for extension dated January 3, 2011 
3. Kidder Mathews letter dated January 3, 2011 

 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request that the City Council grant a one year extension to 
the Blyth Schneider Office Building Commercial Site Development Permit, City File No. LU05-
0037.  
 
Covington Municipal Code (CMC) 18.110.808 states that if an applicant fails to file a complete 
building permit within three years of the approval date, the application shall become null and 
void.  The City Council may approve up to two (2) one-year extensions if the applicant can show 
good faith progress and a justifiable bases for the delay.  Essentially, granting two (2) one-year 
extensions allows for a commercial development permit to be valid for up to five years.  
 
The Blyth Schneider Office Building Commercial Site Development Permit is for the 
development of a 23,300 sq. ft. three story office/mixed use building on 1.74 acres, and located 
at 17625 SE 272nd Street.  The site contains a portion of Jenkins Creek and associated wetlands.  
The project made application in 2005 under the former Downtown Commercial Zone and 
associated regulation.  The proposal was approved with conditions by the Community 
Development Director on January 16, 2008.  No associated engineering review, construction 
permits or building permits have been submitted for the site. (Attachment 1) 
 
The developer submitted a request to the City to extend the land use approval for two years 
(Attachment 2).  The code provision only allows the Council to grant up to two (2) -one year 
extensions; therefore, the developer will be required to apply for another extension next year if 
the project has not moved forward.  The request is based on a market analysis provided by 
Kidder Mathews (Attachment 3), whereby it is determined that the sale of commercial building 
in South King County has remained slow, and that banks are requiring up to 50% down on a 
construction loan.  This has prohibited the applicant from moving forward with the construction 
of the building at his time. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1.  Deny the Blyth Schneider request for a one year extension 
2.  Request additional information from staff 
 

18 of 24



FISCAL IMPACT:   
Authorization of the extension of the commercial site development will have no fiscal impact.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to grant a one year commercial site development approval extension 
from the date of the original approval for a development application known 
as the Blyth Schneider Office Building, City File No LU05-0037. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Community Development Director, Planning 
Manager 

19 of 24



ATTACHMENT 1

20 of 24



7195 Wagner Way NW, Suite 201, Gig Harbor, Washington 98335 (253) 851-7648  FAX (253) 851-8395     
Page 1 of 1 

CastinoCastinoCastinoCastino Architecture 

 
January 3, 2011 
 
Salina Lyons 
Senior Planner 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
    

RE:  Blyth-Schneider Office Building Commercial Site Development 
 City File No. LU05-0037/2095 
 Request for Extension 

 
Dear Salina, 
 
This letter is to confirm our clients’ request for an extension to their Site Development Permit, 
which was approved on January 16, 2008. 
 
Over the course of these last two+ years, our clients have been working diligently with several 
local & regional real estate firms to locate a suitable tenant for our project. The building is being 
designed to focus on medical office tenants, regular office tenants, as well as a possible small 
retail component on the main level. We have assisted them in these efforts, providing limited 
architectural guidance to a variety of potential users. So far, they have been unable to secure an 
agreement for a long term lease, or a sale of the entire property outright. 
 
As we are all very much aware, the current economic conditions have dealt a huge setback to 
the real estate development market in our area. The attached letter from Richard Davidson of 
Kidder-Mathews dated January 3, 2011 gives testament to this situation. In Pierce County, in an 
effort to assist petitioners for building permits, re-zones, site development permits, etc., they 
have passed a special ordnance, Pierce County Stimulus Ordinance 2008-115s, which is 
allowing current applications to be “frozen” for up to 24 months to allow more time for conditions 
to improve. We offer this as further evidence of the gravity of the current real estate market 
throughout the Pacific Northwest. 
 
For these reasons, we respectfully request a full two-year extension of our existing Site 
Development Permit for the Blyth-Schneider office project. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
James H. Castino, AIA 
Principal 
Castino Architecture 

ATTACHMENT 2

21 of 24



 

  

kiddermathews.com 

January 3, 2011 
 
 
 
Mr. Doug Blyth 
27276 188th Avenue SE 
Kent, WA  98042 
 
Dear Doug: 
 
Per our conversation the other day in regards to the status of commercial real estate sales, leasing and general market 
conditions, the following is a brief synopsis of where things stand today. 
 
LEASING 
The South King County office market has seen very little leasing activity in the last year.  The majority of companies, 
unsure of the future, are not looking to expand or commit to longer term leases.  For the most part, shorter term renewals 
or renewals in existing locations comprise the market activity today.  Those tenants looking to relocate are seeing 
extremely aggressive lease rates, tenant improvement packages and concessions as landlords fight to land their 
business. 
 
SALES 
The sale of commercial buildings, while somewhat better, remains very slow.  The majority of those property sales are 
“bottom of the market” type deals.  Seller financing is often required in order to close the sale.  The lending community 
has opened up the doors a bit, but for most users, the 30% to 40% down required by lenders is just too prohibitive in light 
of the owner / users need to keep operating capital in hand. 
 
Land sales and development deals have remained almost nonexistent as the lending community has been reticent to loan 
on any property not generating a solid bankable income stream.  The few remaining lenders willing to consider lending on 
land purchase or development projects are looking for 50% down on those types of loans. 
 
Hopefully, this information is of help to you in evaluating today’s market. 
 
Please feel free to give me a call with any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard T. Davidson 
First Vice President, Partner 
 
RTD\ss\f:\agents\rick\1214 blyth letter.docx 
 

ATTACHMENT 3

22 of 24



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: January 25, 2011  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

February 8 – City Council Regular Meeting 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23 of 24



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.ci.covington.wa.us 
Tuesday, February 8, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Announcement of Volunteer and Commissioner of the Year (Council) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers. (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Fleet Policy Presentation (Akramoff) 
2. Consider Interlocal Agreement with the City of Black Diamond for Building Plans 

Examining, Inspection, and Code Enforcement Services (Nemens) 
3. Consider Ordinance to Add Utility Definitions to the Zoning Code (Hart) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If Needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

Draft 
as of 1/20/11 

 

24 of 24

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�

	01-25-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, January 25, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	Consent Agenda Item 1 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 01-25-11
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Agenda Item 1 Attachments
	Consent Agenda Item C-2 Green Sheet012511ReporterContractBlueSheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2 Attachment 2011ReporterContract
	Consent Agenda Item C-3 Green Sheet Blyth Schneider Extension Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3 Attach 1 - Blyth Schneider Site Plan
	Consent Agenda Item C-3 Attach 2 - Blyth Schneider request for extension_010311
	Consent Agenda Item C-3 Attach 3 -Kidder Mathews Comments_010311
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	02-08-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, February 8, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION




